Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No.  04-1383 PO




)

TIMOTHY M. KAMER,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


The Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) has cause to discipline Timothy K. Kramer because he attempted to distribute a controlled substance.
Procedure


On October 19, 2004, the Director filed a complaint seeking discipline against Kamer’s peace officer license.  We served Kamer with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on November 4, 2004.  He did not respond to the complaint.  We heard the case on March 14, 2005.  Assistant Attorney General David F. Barrett represented the Director.  Neither Kamer nor an attorney representing him appeared.  Our reporter filed the transcript on June 9, 2005.
Findings of Fact

1.
Kamer has a Class A peace officer license.  Kamer had the license during the events set forth in these findings.
2.
Kramer was a police officer with the Independence Police Department.  He and fellow officer Edward Wisdom shared an interest in weight lifting.  Kamer told Wisdom that he could sell anabolic steroids (“steroids”) to Wisdom.  
3.
Wisdom recounted his conversation with Kamer to Detective Joseph Fanara, an officer still on the Jackson County Drug Task Force, where Wisdom had served for three years.  
4.
In a recorded telephone conversation, Wisdom and Kamer negotiated a sale of steroids for $450.  
5.
On June 13, 2002, Fanara provided $450 to Wisdom from the Jackson County Drug Task Force.  Fanara then video/audio recorded Wisdom and Kamer meeting in the back lot of the Independence Police Department.  Wisdom offered Kamer the $450 for steroids.  Kamer took the money and said that he would call Wisdom when he had the steroids.
6.
When Wisdom asked about the steroids over the next few months, Kamer said that he was having problems with his source in St. Louis.  Finally, on September 4, 2002, Wisdom asked Kamer for the money back.  Kamer said that he would return the money and apologized because of the problems he was having with his supply.
7.
On September 11, 2002, a federal grand jury indicted Kamer for knowingly and intentionally attempting to distribute anabolic steroids, a Schedule III controlled substance, on June 13, 2002, contrary to 21 USC § 841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(D) in violation of 21 USC § 846.  The indictment was filed in the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri.
8.
On November 18, 2002, Kamer pled guilty to the charge in the indictment.
9.
On February 4, 2003, the court found Kamer guilty of the offense in the indictment, sentenced him to pay $300 in criminal monetary penalties, and placed him on two years of probation.

Conclusions of Law


Section 621.045
 gives us jurisdiction to hear this complaint.  The Director has the burden of proving that Kamer has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989). 


The Director cites § 590.080, RSMo Supp. 2004, which states:


1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

*   *   *


(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed[.]
The Director alleges that Kamer committed the federal criminal offense of attempting to distribute a controlled substance.  

Title 21 USC § 841 provides:

(a) Unlawful acts 
Except as authorized by this subchapter, it shall be unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionally— 
(1) to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, or possess with intent to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, a controlled substance[.]

Title 21 USC § 846 provides:

Any person who attempts or conspires to commit any offense defined in this subchapter shall be subject to the same penalties as
those prescribed for the offense, the commission of which was the object of the attempt or conspiracy. 
Title 21 CFR § 1308.13(f)(1) lists anabolic steroids as a Schedule III controlled substance.  
The Director proved that Kamer committed the offense through the testimony of Officer Wisdom and Detective Fanara, who participated in and witnessed the transactions by which Wisdom tried to buy steroids from Kamer.  The Director also introduced federal court records showing the indictment against Kramer and his plea of guilty to the charge.  The guilty plea is an admission of Kramer to the offense charged in the indictment.  Nichols v. Blake, 418 S.W.2d 188, 190 (Mo. 1967).  
The Director has proven that Kamer committed a criminal offense.  There is cause to discipline Kamer under § 590.080.1(2), RSMo Supp. 2004.
Summary


The Director has shown cause to discipline Kamer’s peace officer license under 

§ 590.080.1(2), RSMo Supp. 2004.

SO ORDERED on July 26, 2005.



________________________________



KAREN A. WINN  


Commissioner

	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the Revised Statutes of Missouri 2000.
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